
 

 

 
CORPORATE REPORT  

 
 
 
 NO: R037  COUNCIL DATE: March 1, 2010  
 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL 
 
TO: Mayor & Council DATE: February 26, 2010 
 
FROM: General Manager, Engineering FILE: 4520-20(15448-05603) 
 
SUBJECT: Application to Deposit Soil on Property at 15448 - No. 10 Highway (56 Avenue) 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering Department recommends that Council resolve to forward the application to 
deposit soil on the property at 15448 - No. 10 Highway (56 Avenue) to the Agricultural Land 
Commission (ALC) for consideration in accordance with the Surrey Soil Conservation and 
Protection By-law, 2007, No. 16389, and Agricultural Land Commission Act, S.B.C. 2002.   
 
INTENT 
 
The purpose of this report is to advise Council about an application that has been received by the 
City to allow soil to be deposited on the property at 15448 - No. 10 Highway and to obtain Council 
authorization to forward the application to the ALC for consideration. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Soil deposition on lands within the City is regulated under the Surrey Soil Conservation and 
Protection By-law, 2007, No. 16389, and the provincial Agricultural Land Commission Act. 
 
The owners of the property at 15448 - No. 10 Highway applied to deposit soil over a portion of the 
property to accommodate a single family dwelling, 2 workshops and a duplex on the lot.  The 
proposed soil deposition works did not qualify as an approved farm use under Section 18 of the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act, which states that the area of fill for a residential dwelling and 
accessory facilities should be limited to a maximum area of 0.2 hectares (2,000 m2).  The area 
proposed for filling exceeded this limit.  As a result, the owner divided the permit application into 
two phases – the first phase being for the single family dwelling and 2 workshops and the second 
phase being related to the duplex and a related septic field. 
 
ALC staff reviewed the proposed soil deposition plan for the first phase and determined that the 
proposal was acceptable to proceed as it met the ALC footprint requirements for a residence. As a 
result, the property owner was granted a Soil Deposition permit for the first phase of soil 
deposition, being Phase 1 of the project. 
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DISCUSSION 
 
The Engineering Department has now received an application from the owner of the subject 
property for the second phase of soil deposition related to creating a site for a duplex and related 
septic field, which soil operation will be referenced as Phase 2.  The application proposes the 
deposition of 18,171 m3 of fill over an area of 3819 m2.  The proposed duplex is allowed under the 
site’s current zoning, the General Agricultural (A1) Zone. 
 
Since the proposed Phase 2 fill area when combined with the fill that occurred under Phase 1 
exceeds 2000 sq. m., the application is considered by the ALC as being for non-farm use purposes.  
The Agricultural Land Commission Act requires that applications for non-farm use purposes must 
be submitted to the local government for consideration prior to being forwarded to the ALC for 
consideration.  The ALC will only consider the application if an authorization by a resolution of 
City Council is provided. 
 
Agricultural Advisory Committee Comments  
 
The subject soil depositing application was presented to the City’s Agricultural Advisory 
Committee (AAC) on September 3, 2009, and although a quorum was not present, the members 
who were present recommended that Council reject the Soil Depositing Application until the 
applicant works within the existing ALC standards of fill for residential use by reducing the 
proposed footprint of the duplex. 
 
Although the AAC recommends that Council reject the Soil Depositing Application, they are 
basing their recommendation on the assumption that the ALC will not consider a variance to 
their standards.  While the concerns raised by the AAC are recognized, the ALC is in the best 
position to determine whether the proposed variance to their policy is reasonable. 
  
Since the matter was considered by the AAC, staff has further reviewed the application from a 
zoning, engineering, and agricultural utility perspective and has met with the applicant to address 
issues raised by the AAC.  The property has a number of watercourses within it and rights-of-way 
over it which limit the location of the proposed building and septic field within the lot.  In 
addition, to maximize current and future farming opportunities on the property, staff has 
concluded that the area proposed for soil deposition is reasonable. 
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CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above discussion, it is recommended that Council resolve to forward the application 
to deposit soil on the property at 15448 - No. 10 Highway (56 Avenue) to the Agricultural Land 
Commission (ALC) for consideration.   
 
 
 

Vincent Lalonde, P.Eng. 
General Manager, Engineering 

 
VL/JA/CAB/TS/brb/jkb 
 
c.c. - General Manager, Planning & Development  
 
Appendix I.   Aerial Photo of the Property 
Appendix II. Agricultural Land Commission Application 
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APPENDIX II 
Local Government Report 
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